
TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY 
PLANNING BOARD  

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
July 5, 2022 

6:00 p.m. 

Call to Order  Chair 

Determination of Quorum Chair 

1. Approval of Agenda

2. Approval of Minutes June 6, 2022, Regular Monthly Meeting 

New Business 

3. Table of Uses Amendment   Electronic Gaming Operations Correction

ACTION REQUESTED: Motion to recommend Ordinance 2022-06 to correct the UDO’s Permitted
Table of Uses and adopt the Statement of Consistency and Reasonableness as presented.

4. Application Review

ACTION REQUESTED: Motion (to recommend / not recommend) Curtis Buck for appointment to
the Planning Board’s alternate Town seat with a term expiration of 7/31/2025.

Old Business None 

Adjourn 

Planning Board Page 1 July 5, 2022



Agenda Item Summary 
Regular Monthly Meeting  
July 5, 2022                                Approval of Agenda 
Agenda Item 1  

         Motion Made By: 
 
Summary 
 

The Board may discuss, add, or delete items from the agenda. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
Action Requested 
 
Motion to adopt the agenda (as presented / as amended). 
 

 
Second By: 

 
For: 

 
Against: 

 
 

  

__________________  

  

__________________  

Chair Richard Luhrs  

Vice-Chair Michelle Reid  

David Morris  

Jared Mathis  

Jerry Holshouser  

Joe Hudson  

Mike Brinkley  

Ronald Jacobs  

Dolores Shannon (A)  

  

  

Chair Richard Luhrs  

Vice-Chair Michelle Reid  

David Morris  

Jared Mathis  

Jerry Holshouser  

Joe Hudson  

Mike Brinkley  

Ronald Jacobs  

Dolores Shannon (A)  

  

  

Planning Board Page 2 July 5, 2022



Agenda Item Summary 
Regular Monthly Meeting  
July 5, 2022                                     Approval of Minutes 
Agenda Item 2  

         Motion Made By: 
 
Summary 
 

Draft minutes from June 6, 2022, Regular Monthly Meeting are 
attached for your review.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
Action Requested 
 
Motion to approve June 6, 2022, Regular Monthly Meeting 
minutes (as presented / as amended). 
 

 
Second By: 

 
For: 

 
Against: 

 
 

  

__________________  

  

__________________  

Chair Richard Luhrs  

Vice-Chair Michelle Reid  

David Morris  

Jared Mathis  

Jerry Holshouser  

Joe Hudson  

Mike Brinkley  

Ronald Jacobs  

Dolores Shannon (A)  

  

  

Chair Richard Luhrs  

Vice-Chair Michelle Reid  

David Morris  

Jared Mathis  

Jerry Holshouser  

Joe Hudson  

Mike Brinkley  

Ronald Jacobs  

Dolores Shannon (A)  

  

  

Planning Board Page 3 July 5, 2022



 

 
                                                              

TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY 
PLANNING BOARD  

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
June 6, 2022, 6:00 p.m. 

 

 
Present: Chair Richard Luhrs, Vice-Chair Michelle Reid, Mike Brinkley, Jerry Holshouser, Joe Hudson, 
Ronald Jacobs, Jared Mathis 
 
Not Present: David Morris, Dolores Shannon (A) 
 
Staff:  Contracted Town Planner Bill Bailey, Town Clerk Aubrey Smith 
 
Call to Order: Chairman Luhrs called the Planning Board meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Determination of Quorum: Chairman Luhrs verified there was a quorum present. 
 
1. Approval of Agenda 

ACTION: Vice-Chair Reid made a motion to approve the agenda. Mr. Mathis seconded the motion. 
The motion passed with all in favor. 

 
2. Approval of Minutes 

ACTION: Mr. Hudson made a motion to approve the minutes from the May 2, 2022, Regular Monthly 
Meeting. Mr. Mathis seconded the motion. The motion passed with all in favor. 

 
New Business 
 
3. Rezoning     817 N. Salisbury Avenue RL to RH 

Planner Bailey shared that the developer submitted a letter requesting the rezoning request be removed 
from tonight’s agenda and the subsequent June 13, 2022, Board of Aldermen meeting agenda and be 
placed on the August 1, 2022, Planning Board meeting agenda and the August 8, 2022, Board of 
Aldermen meeting agenda. 

 
Chairman Luhrs asked whether the Planning Board could move the rezoning request to the September 
meeting. Planner Bailey stated that the Planning Board could make a motion to that effect stating a 
reason for the postponement.  

 
ACTION: Mr. Brinkley made a motion to continue the rezoning per the developer’s request (to the 
August 1, 2022 Planning Board meeting agenda). Mr. Hudson seconded the motion. The motion passed 
5-1 with Mr. Holshouser opposed. 
 
Chairman Luhrs stated that his concern was that there be an opportunity for members of the community 
to be heard. 
 

 

Planning Board Page 4 July 5, 2022



P l a n n i n g  B o a r d  R e g u l a r  M e e t i n g  M i n u t e s  
J u n e  6 ,  2 0 2 2  

P a g e  | 2 

 
 

4. Ordinance Amendment   Stream Buffer 
Planner Bailey explained the reasons for the proposed amendments to UDO Chapter 7.6.1. The new 
text is from state law. 
 
ACTION: Mr. Brinkley made a motion to recommend Ordinance 2022-05 to amend UDO Chapter 
7.6.1 Stream Buffer. Mr. Mathis seconded the motion. The motion passed 6-0. 
 
ACTION: Mr. Brinkley made a motion to adopt the Statement of Consistency as presented. Mr. Mathis 
seconded the motion. The motion passed 6-0. 
 

5. Member Reappointments 
The Board discussed the eligibility and desire to be reappointed for members with expiring terms. 
 
ACTION: Mr. Jacobs made a motion to recommend to the Board of Aldermen reappointment of Jared 
Mathis and Dolores Shannon to ETJ Planning Board seats with term expirations of 7/31/2025.  Vice-
Chair Reid seconded the motion. The motion passed 6-0. 
 
Ms. Shannon was not present but will be contacted to verify her willingness to be reappointed. 

 
Old Business     None 
 
Adjournment  
 
ACTION: Mr. Mathis made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Jacobs seconded the motion. The motion 
passed with all in favor. 
 
Chairman Luhrs closed the meeting at 6:21 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 

Aubrey Smith 
Town Clerk 

Planning Board Page 5 July 5, 2022



Agenda Item Summary 
Regular Monthly Meeting  
July 5, 2022                          UDO Amendment 
Agenda Item 3  

         ,Motion Made By: 
 
Summary 
This is a technical change that was previously reviewed and 
approved. 
• In the 2016 UDO’s Table of Uses Electronic Gaming Operations 

is listed but doesn’t show any zoning classifications where they 
would be allowed. 

• Ord. 2018-05 amending the UDO’s Table of Uses says 
Electronic Gaming Operations needs to be listed as a Conditional 
Use (C) with Special Restrictions (SR) in the Highway Business 
District (HB) and Central Business District (CB) zoning 
classification columns of the Uniform Development Ordinance 
(UDO) Section 3.3. Permitted Uses Table. 

• Ord. 2020-02 amending the UDO’s Table of Uses says 
Electronic Gaming Operations needs to be listed as a Conditional 
Use (C) with Special Restrictions (SR) in the Heavy Industry (HI) 
zoning classification columns of the Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO) Section 3.3. Permitted Uses Table. 

 
Ord. 2020-02 was meant to amend the actions taken in Ord. 2018-05 
but instead of replacing the conditional allowances in the CB and HB 
zoning classifications, it was added in addition to them. The Town 
Attorney recommends that action be taken to make the correction. The 
proposed amendment would make the correction to the UDO’s 
Permitted Uses Table. 
 
Attachments: 

• Ordinance 2018-05 
• Ordinance 2020-02 
• Draft Ordinance 2022-06 

 
 
 
Action Requested 
Motion to recommend Ordinance 2022-06 to correct the 
UDO’s Permitted Table of Uses and adopt the Statement of 
Consistency and Reasonableness as presented. 

 
Second By: 

 
For: 

 
 
Against: 

 
 

  

__________________  

  

__________________  

Chair Richard Luhrs  

Vice-Chair Michelle Reid  

David Morris  

Jared Mathis  

Jerry Holshouser  

Joe Hudson  

Mike Brinkley  

Ronald Jacobs  

Dolores Shannon (A)  

Chair Richard Luhrs  

Vice-Chair Michelle Reid  

David Morris  

Jared Mathis  

Jerry Holshouser  

Joe Hudson  

Mike Brinkley  

Ronald Jacobs  

Dolores Shannon (A)  

Planning Board Page 6 July 5, 2022



Planning Board Page 7 July 5, 2022



Planning Board Page 8 July 5, 2022



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-2 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TEXT FOR ELECTRONIC GAMING OPERATIONS 

SECTION OF THE TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY'S 

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF 

GRANITE QUARRY: 

Section 1. Electronic Gaming Operations needs to be listed as a Conditional Use (C) with 
Special Restrictions (SR) in the Heavy Industry (HI) zoning classification columns of the 
Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Section 3.3. Permitted Uses Table. 

Section 2. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 
repealed to the extent of such conflict, and that this ordinance shall be effective from the date 
of its passage. 

Adopted this 6th day of January, 2020. 

&� William D. Feath,ayor 

Planning Board Page 9 July 5, 2022



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-06 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY’S  
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 

  
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF GRANITE 
QUARRY: 
 
Section 1. That 3.3.3 Permitted Uses Table is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

USES ZONING DISTRICTS 

RR RL RM RH OI NB CB HB LI HI DT/LI SR 

Recreation and Entertainment Uses 

Electronic gaming 
operations 

      
C C 

 
C 

 
4.6. 

 
 
Section 2. All ordinances in conflict herewith are repealed to the extent of any such conflict. 
 
Section 3. This ordinance is effective on the ______ day of ______________ 2022. 
 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Brittany H. Barnhardt, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM:    
 
 
_________________________________        
Aubrey Smith, Town Clerk   Carl M. Short, Town Attorney 

Planning Board Page 10 July 5, 2022



Agenda Item Summary 
Regular Monthly Meeting  
July 5, 2022                                  Application Review 
Agenda Item 5  

         ,Motion Made By: 
 
Summary 
 

On June 14, 2022 Curtis Buck, Jr. submitted his application for 
the Planning Board’s vacant Town alternate seat. The attached 
summary from the clerk’s review of the application has been 
attached. 
 
Attachments: 

• Clerk’s Review Summary 
• Curtis Buck, Jr. Application 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Action Requested 
Motion (to recommend / not recommend) Curtis Buck for 
appointment to the Planning Board’s alternate Town seat 
with a term expiration of 7/31/2025. 

 
Second By: 

 
For: 

 
 
Against: 

 
 

  

__________________  

  

__________________  

Chair Richard Luhrs  

Vice-Chair Michelle Reid  

David Morris  

Jared Mathis  

Jerry Holshouser  

Joe Hudson  

Mike Brinkley  

Ronald Jacobs  

Dolores Shannon (A)  

Chair Richard Luhrs  

Vice-Chair Michelle Reid  

David Morris  

Jared Mathis  

Jerry Holshouser  

Joe Hudson  

Mike Brinkley  

Ronald Jacobs  

Dolores Shannon (A)  

Planning Board Page 11 July 5, 2022



  SUMMARY 
 

TO: Planning Board; Board of Aldermen  

FROM: Town Clerk Aubrey Smith 

RE: Summary of Application Review 

DATE: 6/14/2022 
 

 
The current Committee Membership Recruiting and Appointment Policy, adopted by the Board of 
Aldermen 9/8/2020, directs the Clerk to conduct an administrative review of an application, comparing 
with: 

• Any ordinance requirements for qualifications; 
• The current compositions of the applicable committee’s membership for diversity of 

backgrounds and residence locations with a goal of fair representation of the town’s 
jurisdiction. 

 
Ordinance Requirements 
UDO 15.6.2 Membership. 
The Planning Board shall consist of a total of nine (9) regular members and two (2) alternate members. 
Representation shall be provided by appointing five (5) residents of the town limits and four (4) 
residents of the extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ). One (1) alternate member shall reside in the town 
limits, and one (1) shall reside in the ETJ. The total membership of the Planning Board shall include a 
diverse geographical representation overall. Representatives from within the Town limits shall be 
appointed by the Granite Quarry Town Board of Aldermen. Representatives from the ETJ area shall be 
appointed by the Rowan County Board of Commissioners. All members shall serve for overlapping 
terms of three (3) years. 
 
The current Planning Board membership consists of the following: 

• 5 filled Town seats   0 Vacant Town seats  
• 1 vacant Town Alternate seat  
• 3 filled ETJ seats   1 vacant ETJ seat  
• 1 filled ETJ Alternate seat 

 
Diversity of Backgrounds 
 Mr. Buck is a telecommunications engineer. 

 
The backgrounds of the other Planning Board members include: 

• Construction 
• Sales / Customer Service 
• National Guard / Fire Service 
• Inventory control 
• Marketing 
• Dental hygienist 
• NCDOT project manager 
• RN 
• Site locating for trucking company

Planning Board Page 12 July 5, 2022



 
Diversity of Geographical Representation 
 Mr. Buck is a resident of the Town and lives on Brookwood Drive. 

 
The residences of the other Planning Board members currently representing the Town are located on 
the following streets: 

1) Byrd Road 
2) South Jack Street 
3) Foil Street 

4) North Cleo Avenue 
5) North Main Street 
 

 

 

Planning Board Page 13 July 5, 2022



Planning Board Page 14 July 5, 2022



Planning Board Page 15 July 5, 2022


	July 5, 2022 Planning Board Agenda
	1. Approval of Agenda
	2. Approval of Minutes
	3. Table of Uses Amendment
	4. Application Review



